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1 DESCRIPTION
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_FAIR _UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Woman's Club House In Manhattan is essentially a Bungalow, being a 
rectangular one-story stuccoed building with a side gable roof and a gabled 
entrance porch facing south on Poyntz Avenue. The building is sited on a corner lot.

On the north side of the building, there is a kitchen bay. Planters are 
incorporated into the wall/window treatment of the gable ends. The roof is 
covered with grey asphalt shingles. The wooden trim is painted white. The 
windows are paired 8-pane casements. There is a central chimney.

Inside there is an anteroom which opens into the large general meeting 
room. The meeting room was designed so that it could be subdivided by folding 
doors. A kitchen and restroom are attached to the north. There is a basement 
for the furnace and storage.

Over the fireplace there is a plaque, "Woman's Mission," sculpted by 
George Zolnay. It portrays the mother of mankind educating, guiding, and protecting 
childhood. This was the official emblem of the American Woman's League and few 
examples have survived.

Alterations

Both the exterior and interior of the Woman's Club House have received 
only minor alterations. The asphalt roof shingles are not original and the 
brick chimney was probably parged over some time after the construction of the 
building. The decorative capitals of the porch piers are no longer polychromed.

Inside, the original coved ceiling has been hidden by a dropped acoustical 
tile grid ceiling. Some folding doors in the general meeting room have been removed.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

As an Arts and Crafts style bungalow, the Woman's Club House Is a design 
distinctive of the early twentieth century. But more Important 1s the building's 
association with the American Woman's League scheme which capitalized on the 
enthusiasm for self and civic improvement during the period. The League's 
emphasis on supporting education was similar to the goals of the Carnegie 
Free Libraries. Despite the profiteering that underlay the scheme, Manhattan, 
and many other American communities, were positively affected by the promotion 
to develop woman's organizations that played important roles in community life.

Chronology

The Manhattan chapter of the American Woman's League held its first meeting 
August 30, 1909 at the Riley County Courthouse. In its constitution the group 
stated that its purpose was to associate the women of Manhattan in intellectual, 
cultural and civic activities and to create among its members "an unselfish public 
spirit that could work for the advancement of the interests of Manhattan and the 
improvement of the condition of its inhabitants." The most immediate concern 
of the local group, and in fact the catalyst that led to organization of the 
chapter, was the donation of a completely furnished chapter house to be constructed 
on a lot provided by the local group. The club house was to be the gift of the 
E.G. Lewis Publishing Company.

This donation was the basis of business promotion of the Lewis Company 
which capitalized on widespread popular interest in organizations for women 
devoted to charitable causes, intellectual development, social interaction, and 
civic welfare. The company offered membership in an organization called the 
American Woman's League, which purported to support a university correspondence 
education program. Local chapters were required to secure 50 to 75 members; 
each member was then to solicit subscriptions worth at least $52.00 for some of the 
numerous publications listed by the Lewis Publishing Company. The company would 
receive 50% of the subscription sales as a commission from the magazine publishers 
involved. Local chapters would then be given a clubhouse provided that it 
could supply a lot upon which to build it. The building site was to be deeded 
to the League to be held in trust for the local chapter. Thereafter the 
chapter was to receive an annual percentage of its subscription sales to be 
used for their expenses.
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claimed that Ulrich's building expertise was much in 
demand among wealthy citizens of the town who desired "handsome" and 
"stylish" residences such as those he built for E.B. Purcell and for 
Ashford Stingley.

Rather than brick, however, it was limestone that achieved the 
greatest prominence as a popular and distinctive building material in 
Manhattan in the late 19th century. Ulrich's own sons, William and 
Edward, began a stone quarrying business in 1877 which within a decade 
was being credited by the Manhattan Republic with a large role in 
developing the limestone business as a substantial economic resource 
for Manhattan. Still, brick buildings were considered valuable 
contributions to the town's visual image, for, as one 1881 publication 
on the community noted, the stone and brick houses gave Manhattan "an 
unusually solid and thrifty appearance." Ulrich's own house, built in 
1868-1869 of brick that in all likelihood was obtained from his own 
brickyard, is one of the few brick residences from this period still 
remaining in Manhattan. The Ulrich house was modest in comparison 
with most of the fine residences Ulrich had a hand in constructing in 
Manhattan. For example, while the Purcell House (now destroyed) was 
an elaborate two and one-half story structure complete with impressive 
tower, Ulrich's own house, which he was constructing at about the same 
time, was a modest one and one-half story structure lacking pretentious 
projections. Nevertheless, both residences drew upon the same system 
of architectural design that associated with Victorian villa and 
cottage architecture. The Ulrich house is a valuable illustration of 
the application of this type of design to conditions in Manhattan.

The cottage/villa system of architecture had been most persuasively 
discussed and promulgated in America by A. J. Downing, whose publica­ 
tions on villas and cottage design in the 1840's and early 1850's were 
the first of a rash of similar publications by numerous like-minded 
authors that would dominate the popular architectural press through the 
1880's. These books provided a great variety of plans and elevations 
of "approved" designs as well as model specifications. Through the 
designs and accompanying discussions, these books, a ready source of 
ideas for builders throughout the country, communicated the essence 
of the architectural theory Downing formulated. The major thrust of 
Downing 1 s theory was that domestic architecture should reflect, in form, 
structure, materials and siting, the owner's economic circumstances 
as well as the application of rational and picturesque principles. 
Thus, if the differences in scale and decoration between the Ulrich 
and Purcell houses reflected the differences in owners' economic status, 
both structures demonstrated a taste for the picturesque and rational- 
looking effects of varied massing, contrasts in both light and shade 
and open and closed elements, as well as ornamentation confined to
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structural features. Both also utilized Anglo-Italian detailing. The 
easily achieved gradations in scale and elaborateness and the numerous 
designs available in the villa/cottage system recommended it to archi­ 
tects and builders throughout America during the second half of the 
19th century, including builders like 111 rich.

Also important to this system of design was the relationship of 
building to site the most expansive site possible was desirable in 
order to reap the benefits of Nature's influence. The Ulrich House 
still occupies its original generous three-lot site and thus is 
fortunate in retaining the character of the original building site 
relationship.

Note: the above statement reflects present understanding of the 
nominated property. Should additional information become available 
or should changes in the state of historical learning occur, this 
statement may require re-evaluation and,possibly, modification.
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After the Manhattan group was organized in 1909, it was given two years to secure 
the subscriptions and purchase a building lot. The group purchased a lot in Manhattan 
in 1910 for $1500. Construction of the chapter house began early in 1911.

Six standard plans and elevations were used by the American Woman's League 
for chapter houses. The building in Manhattan is basically a class 3 design 
(building to cost $4000 for towns of 3000-5000; chapters of 75 members). The 
design was provided by the firm of Helfensteller, Hirsch, and Watson of St. Louis, 
Missouri. From correspondence between the League's head office and Mrs. Lydia Willard, 
president of the Manhattan chapter, it appears that the standard plan was modified to 
fit the smaller dimensions available on the lot which was purchased in Manhattan.

While the chapter house was being built in 1911, government prosecution forced 
the Lewis Publishing Company to suspend its business activities. The company was 
charged with disobeying the law and flooding the mails with periodicals. When it was 
suspended, the company owed $1000 to be paid on the Manhattan contract.

Trustees of the chapter arranged a mortgage for this amount and took in ten member 
whose dues paid for installation of thefurnace and light fixtures. Chapter members 
also had to pay for the club house furniture. Total cost of the club house came 
to $6,651. Closing fees, furnishings, and interest charges added almost $1000 to 
the price of the "free" building.

Despite these developments, it was reported that the group enjoyed its first 
meeting in the new building August 24, 1911. Since the American Woman's League collapsi 
along with the Lewis Publishing Company, the Manhattan group changed its name in 1913 
to the Woman's Welfare Association. In 1920 the name was changed again to the 
Woman's Club.

At the present time the club has only 48 members, mostly senior citizens. Although 
the church next door occasionally uses the building, the income and resources of the 
club are declining even as the costs of utilities, maintenance, and taxes increase.

THIS STATEMENT REFLECTS CURRENT KNOWLEDGE AND MAY BE SUBJECT TO FUTURE AMENDMENT. 
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